Cose Columbia

Columbia Economic Development Corporation

COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING

Please take notice that there will be a meeting of the Columbia Economic Development Corporation Board on June
25,2019 at 8:30am at 4303 Route 9, Hudson, NY 12534 for the purpose of discussing any matters that may be
presented to the Corporation for consideration.

Dated: June 18, 2019
Sarah Sterling, CEDC Secretary, Columbia Economic Development Corporation

CEDC Board of Directors Agenda
Members:

Ruth Adams Tish Finnegan Robert Sherwood

Russell Bartolotta Derek Grout Gary Spielmann

Rick Bianchi James Lapenn Sarah Sterling

Jim Calvin John Lee Brian Stickles

Jim Campion Carmine Pierro Maria Lagana Suttmeier

Rick Cummings Seth Rapport

David Fingar Richard Scalera

Chairman’s Remarks
Minutes, May 21, 2019*
Treasurer Report*
Portfolio Review*
President/CEO Report
Office Relocation
Membership Update
Committee Reports
a. Audit & Finance Committee
b. Executive Committee
¢. Loan Committee
1.  HDC Update
d. Governance & Nominating Committee
1. Board Candidate*
e. Workforce & Education Committee

PXRAN AW

9. Public Comment

Attachments:

Draft May 21, 2019 minutes

Treasurer’s Report

Portfolio Report

Draft Lease Agreement
*Requires Approval

4303 Route 9, Hudson, NY 12534 | 518.828.4718 | Fax 518.828.0901
www.columbiaedc.com




L4

Cose Columbia

Columbia Economic Development Corporation

MINUTES
COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
Tuesday, May 21, 2019
4303 Route 9
Hudson, NY 12534

A regularly scheduled meeting of the Columbia Economic Development Corporation (CEDC) Board
of Directors was held at 4303 Route 9, Hudson, NY 12534 on May 21, 2019. The meeting was called
to order at 8:31 a.m. by David Fingar, Chair.

Ruth Adams Board Member Present
Russell Bartolotta Board Member Excused
Rick Bianchi Treasurer Present
Jim Calvin Vice-Chair Present
Jim Campion Board Member — Ex Officio Present
Rick Cummings Board Member Present
David Fingar Chair Present
Tish Finnegan Board Member Present
Derek Grout Board Member Present
James Lapenn Board Member Present
John Lee Board Member Excused
Carmine Pierro Board Member — Ex Officio Excused
Seth Rapport Board Member Excused
Richard Scalera Board Member — Ex Officio Present
Robert Sherwood Board Member Excused
Gary Spielmann Board Member Excused
Sarah Sterling Secretary Present
Brian Stickles Board Member Present
Maria Suttmeier Board Member Excused
Andy Howard CEDC Attorney Present
F. Michael Tucker President/CEO Present
Lisa Drahushuk Administrative Supervisor Present
Kayla Duntz CEDC Intern Present
Martha Lane Business Development Specialist Present Recused 8:59am
Returned 9:38am

Erin McNary Bookkeeper Present
Ed Stiffler Economic Developer Present
Carol Wilber Marketing Director Present
Stephanie Sussman Resident Present

4303 Route 9, Hudson, NY 12534 }518.828.4718 | Fax 518.828.0901
www.columbiaedc.com




L2ry

Mpr. Calvin made a motion, seconded by Mr. Lapenn to approve the April 23, 2019 minutes as
presented. Carried.

Treasurer’s Report:
Mr. Tucker reviewed the balance sheet and the profit and loss. Mr. Lapenn made a motion, seconded

by Ms. Finnegan to approve the Treasurer’s Report as presented. Carried.

President’s Report:

Mr. Tucker stated the annual meeting was very successful, crediting Ms. Wilber for the event. He
noted The Columbia Paper had made the meeting the subject of its weekly editorial. The editorial
suggested CEDC address sustainability and diversity.

Mr. Tucker informed the Board he would be attending the CFA informational meeting at Columbia-
Greene Community College after the meeting. That would be followed by a meeting with local
businesses and Empire State Development at the Wick Hotel. Mr. Tucker handed out an overview of
the New York State Workforce Development Initiative to the Board. Projects would be accepted on
a continual basis.

M. Tucker stated he had attended the County Economic Development Committee the previous night.
The Committee discussed housing, broadband and land banks. He informed the Committee of the
potential HDC loan as well as the former Lone Star property project.

Mr. Tucker informed the Board that he and Mr. Fingar had been investigating office space at Hudson
City Centre on the third floor and was awaiting numbers from the owner.

Membership Update:

Ms. Wilber stated memberships received for the period January — May, totaled $29,850. Deferred
membership totaled $14,516.92 and sponsorships totaled $13,950. She noted an additional $26,000
would need to be received to reach the goal of $85,000. She stated memberships would continue to
be promoted during the summer’s business visitations and could be obtained with the assistance of a
fall event.

Committee Reports:

Audit and Finance Committee:

Executive Committee:

None of the above committees had met during the previous month.

Loan Committee:

Dirtworx:

Ms. Lane stated the Loan Committee had approved a $17,000 SBA microloan to Dirtworx. She
stated the company had a previous loan with CEDC and had paid that loan off. She noted the
$17,000 SBA loan was to purchase a plow truck and pay off a lawn mower. Collateral would consist
of the truck and personal guarantee. Interest rate would be 7.25% with a term of 60 months.

Germantown Beer Farm Ltd.

Ms. Lane presented the request from Germantown Beer Farm Ltd. for $30,000 from each of the
CEDC and the SBA loan funds. The interest rate was 7.00% on the SBA loan and 5.00% on the
CEDC loan, with each loan having a 72 month term. Funds would be used for the purchase of




Choose Columbia

Columbia Economic Development Corporation

materials, equipment and supplies to expand operations as well as working capital. Collateral would
consist of a lien on all business assets of Germantown Beer Farm (with the exception of John Deere
equipment) and a personal guarantee of the principals. She noted the Loan Committee had
recommended the loan for approval by the full board. Mr. Calvin made a motion, seconded by Mr.
Grout to approve the loan as presented. Carried.

Hudson Development Corporation (HDC):

Ms. Lane recused herself from the meeting due to her conflict as a board member of HDC

Mr. Tucker gave the history of the request. He reminded the Board, CEDC had approved a loan to
41 Cross Street (Wick Hotel) for the demolition of the former Kaz building owned by HDC. Marriot
had required the building demolition as a condition of their agreement with The Wick. In the fall of
2017, HDC approached Mr. Tucker for a loan in the amount of $95,000 for the purchase of the CSX
property. The request was approved by the Loan Committee and full board. Due to internal issues,
HDC had asked that the loan be put off to a future date. HDC again submitted a request in April of
2019, this request was for $125,000. The request had been approved with the following conditions: a
reserve account containing 1 year of interest only payments; a first mortgage on the CSX and the Kaz
properties until the loan is paid in full; resolution of the title concern and the reservation of $95,000
for the purchase of the property.

Mr. Tucker noted the property was seen as key to the success of The Wick and the Red Barn
properties. He stated the loan committee recommendation in April had been tabled when it became
evident from conversations with Mr. Rasner, Chairman of the HDC Board, other bids for the
property had been received by CSX. CSX had contacted HDC, submitting to them a signed contract
for sale of the property at a cost of $175,000. He stated HDC was now asking for $200,000. He
stated the Loan Committee had recommended the loan to the full board as follows: Three year, 5%
interest only, $200,000 loan with a balloon payment, with the following conditions: holding twelve
months of interest only payments in a debt reserve account; holding a first mortgage on the CSX and
the Kaz properties until the loan is paid in full; resolve the title concern with the CSX property;
reserve $175,000 for the purchase of the property.

Mr. Tucker stated he preferred changing the Loan Committee’s recommendation to a 2 year term as
opposed to 3 years, expressing concern with HDC’s ability to continue movement on the project. He
expressed concern with the possibility of the potential reallocation of DRI money.

Mr. Rasner noted HDC had a signed contract for the land in hand, only awaiting the HDC Board
approval on the contract and the CEDC approval of the loan. He noted when he took the office of
Chairman of the HDC, his goal was the re-building of the HDC Board, which had been completed.
He stated HDC had no staff, which allowed the Board to become acquainted with the daily working
and requirements of the corporation. He stated the CSX parcel was vital to developing the Kaz
parcel, noting it provided frontage, the parcel lacked. He stated during a financial brainstorming

4303 Route 9, Hudson, NY 12534 | 518.828.4718 | Fax 518.828.0901
www.columbiaedc.com




L2ArT

moment he had mentioned boat storage would be a good use for the property as well as an income
generator for HDC. He noted there was never an intention of using the site for long-term storage.

He stated he had understood from the Loan Committee’s three year time frame, they wished HDC to
maintain movement on the project and HDC was agreeable, but he was unsure if 2 years would allow
sufficient time.

M. Lapenn thanked Mr. Rasner for addressing the Board and staff issues. He asked Mr. Rasner to
address HDC’s financial statement and the issue of limited revenues. Mr. Rasner stated a comment
from a previous Board member suggesting HDC dissolve caused an upheaval. He noted that option
was not being considered. He stated the loss of HDC staff had been an opportunity for the board to
re-focus. He noted with the purchase of the CSX parcel, HDC would inherit a lease on the property.
He noted the two other bidders might consider purchasing the property from HDC. He noted that
HDC would be cautious in proceeding to prevent blocking access to either of the two parcels. M.
Rasner noted the HDC balance sheet was weak, and the 2019 budget he had challenged, noting it
contained unrealistic numbers. Mr. Scalera, noting as an ex-officio he was unable to vote, but stated
he would support the loan request if able. He noted it was risky but felt it was imperative to move
forward. He stated 2 years was not a sufficient term for the HDC loan.

Mr. Lapenn asked what the title issue concerned. Mr. Rasner stated it should be resolved during the
title search process. Mr. Bianchi stated Mr. Rasner’s clarifications were helpful, noting the balloon
could be paid off upon sale of the property. Mr. Rasner stated the 3 year term would allow time for
vetting the buyer and assisting them through the process, noting additionally the monthly payment
was sustainable for HDC. Mr. Tucker stated at the end of the 2 year term, the Board could vote to
extend the term or to foreclose, noting after one year the project should be ready to be put out to bid.
Ms. Sterling agreed with a three year term.

Myr. Calvin made a motion, seconded by Mr. Cummings, to approve a three year, 5% interest only,
$200,000 loan with a balloon payment, to Hudson Development Corporation, with the following
conditions. holding twelve months of interest only payments in a debt reserve account; holding a first
mortgage on the CSX and the Kaz properties until the loan is paid in full; resolve the title concern
with the CSX property; reserve $175,000 for the purchase of the property. Carried.

Governance and Nominating Committee:

Mr. Campion stated the Governance and Nominating Committee had reviewed and recommended the
extension of CEDC’s contract with Tucker Strategies for a two year term. Ms. Sterling made a
motion, seconded by Mr. Calvin to approve the two year extension. Carried.

Workforce and Education Committee:
Mr. Lapenn reviewed the discussion that took place at the last workforce meeting, regarding the
creation of a mini-grant program aimed toward school districts with a specific project in mind.

Portfolio Review:

Ms. Lane stated Fahari Bazaar had caught up on the loan after being out of the country. Les collines
had been in touch. She noted Angelo’s had been issued a demand letter, which had initiated a call
stating they would begin payments. She noted their goal was to pay off the growers and CEDC. Ms.
Sterling made a motion, seconded by Mr. Bianchi to approve the portfolio report. Carried.




Choose Columbia

Columbia Economic Development Corporation

Public Comment:

Stephanie Sussman stated the village of Philmont currently lacked a laundromat. She noted that
many low income families currently resided in the village. She informed the board Taconic Hills
school district was currently washing the clothes of the students from Philmont. She referenced
studies that indicated children with dirty clothes were at a higher risk of being bullied, lower self-
esteem and poor attendance. She noted the trend in Taconic Hills toward lower proficiency in
standardized tests which is the reverse of state trends. She presented a concept called laundromat
literacy that could be tried in Philmont. She asked if CEDC could help facilitate locating someone
willing to open a laundromat in Philmont. Mr. Tucker suggested she schedule a meeting with him
and Martha Lane to discuss the idea.

With no other business to be conducted or public comments Mr. Calvin made a motion, seconded by
Mpr. Bianchi to adjourn the meeting. Carried. The meeting adjourned at 9:45am.

Respectfully submitted by Lisa Drahushuk

4303 Route 9, Hudson, NY 12534 | 518.828.4718 | Fax 518.828.0901
www.columbiaedc.com




10:40 AM Columbia Economic Development Corp

06/06119 Balance Sheet Prev Year Comparison
Accrual Basls As of May 31, 2019

May 31,19 May 31, 18 $ Change % Change

ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1000-02 : Loan Kinderhook Ckg 648 19,402.44 85,229.32 -65,826.88 -77.2%
1100-07 - SBA Bank of Greene Cnty RLF #6 55,069.40 41,442.45 13,626.95 32.9%
1100-03 - SBA Bank of Greene Cnty RLF #6 109,879.50 150,118.03 -40,238.53 -26.8%
1100-02 - SBA Key-RLF #4 61,540.22 64,069.80 -2,529.58 -4.0%
1100-01 - SBA Key -RLF #3 43,953.05 41,205.62 2,747.43 6.7%
Checking and Savings 1,870,114.29  1,634,990.25 235,124.04 14.4%
Total Checking/Savings 2,169,958.90 2,017,055.47 142,903.43 71%
Other Current Assats
Due from PFL 0.00 321.81 -321.81 -100.0%
Accounts Recelvable 98,053.63 43,666.67 54,386.96 124.6%
Allowance for Bad debt SBA -36,566.73 -34,766.73 -1,800.00 -5.2%
Other loans receivable 0.00 9,685.68 -9,685.68 -100.0%
Prepald expense 1,323.00 0.00 1,323.00 100.0%
Loans Receivable 392,896.38 357,884.85 35,011.53 9.8%
Total Other Current Assets 455,706.28 376,792.28 78,914.00 20.9%
Total Current Assets 2,615,665.18  2,393,847.75 221,817.43 9.3%
Fixed Assets
Property & Capitalized Assets 9,566.51 9,801.51 -235.00 -2.4%
Total Fixed Assets 9,5666.51 9,801.51 -235.00 -2.4%
Other Assets )
Allowance for Bad Debt Loans -85,830.32 -114,717.17 28,886.85 25.2%
Comm. Pk Land Sale Recv. 28,491.69 37,182.98 -8,691.29 -23.4%
Grants Recelvable 227,051.84 258,446.84 -31,395.00 -12.2%
CEDC-LF 842,743.08 636,959.48 205,783.60 32.3%
Total Other Assets 1,012,456.29 817,872.13 194,584.16 23.8%
TOTAL ASSETS 3,637,687.98  3,221,621.39 416,166.59 12.9%

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabllitles
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

2000-01 - *Accounts Payable 11,491.24 13,029.69 -1,538.45 -11.8%
Total Accounts Payable 11,491.24 13,029.69 -1,538.45 . -11.8%
Other Current Liabllities
Germantown Hamlet Park 1,620.00 0.00 1,620.00 100.0%
2000-02 - Recrultment Exp - Due to RS 425.00 0.00 425.00 100.0%
Accrued Expenses 13,016.06 12,958.32 57.74 0.5%
Deferred Revenue 43,068.35 43,333.34 -264.99 -0.6%
Land Deposit 3,300.00 3,300.00 0.00 0.0%
Total Other Current Liabllities 61,429.41 59,591.66 1,837.75 3.1%
Total Current Liabilities 72,920.65 72,621.35 299.30 0.4%
Long Term Liabllities
Loans Payable to SBA 521,388.43 491,069.62 30,318.81 6.2%
Long term Deferrd Revenue 27,051.84 58,446.84 -31,395.00 -53.7%

Page 1




10:40 AM Columbia Economic Development Corp

06/06/19 Balance Sheet Prev Year Comparison
Accrual Basis As of May 31, 2019
, May 31, 19 May 31,18 $ Change % Change
Total Long Term Liabilities 548,440.27 549,516.46 -1,076.19 -0.2%
Total Liabllitles 621,360.92 622,137.81 -776.89 -0.1%
Equity _
Invested in Capltal Assets 9,926.51 9,801.51 125.00 1.3%
Net assets Restricted 292,231.89 298,985.82 -6,753.93 -2.3%
Unrestricted Net Position 2,691,647.87  2,293,128.33 398,519.54 17.4%
Net Income 22,520.79 -2,532,08 25,052.87 989.4%
Total Equity 3,016,327.06  2,599,383.58 416,943.48 16.0%
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 3,221,621.39 416,166.59 12.9%

3,637,887.98

Page 2




10:39 AM Columbia Economic Development Corp
06/06/19 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis January through May 2019
Jan - May 19 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
TA Fee Income 0.00
Fee Income 76.00
Administrative Revenue 14,166.87 14,583.31 -416.64 87.1%
Columbla County 191,666.66 191,666.66 0.00 100.0%
Grant Income 10,404.49 17,222,27 -8,817.78 60.4%
Loan Income 6,205.95 5,417.68 788.27 114.5%
Membership/Sponsorship 54,708.66 65,000.00 -10,291.44 84.2%
Other Income 10,379.96 6,495.26 3,884.70 169.8%
SBA Microloan T/A 40,720.30 39,583.34 1,136,968 102.9%
Total Income 328,327.59 339,968.52 -11,640.93 96.6%
Gross Profit 328,327.59 339,968.52 -11,640.93 96.6%
Expense
Conferences and Tralning 3,485.00 1,704.00 1,781.00 204.5%
Consulting -TS| 53,335.00 53,335.00 0.00 100.0%
Consulting Fees 14,208.53 13,541.69 666.84 104.9%
Direct Program Expenses 6,114.568 18,636.40 -12,521.84 32.8%
Facility 14,060.47 14,069.47 0.00 100.0%
Insurance 2,832.65 3,760.00 -917.35 76.5%
Interest Expense 136.97
MicroBiz Expenses 11,779.87 6,333.35 5,448.52 186.0%
Neow [nitiatives 18,504.80 31,250.00 -12,745.20 59,2%
Office Expense
5060-01 - Comp./Equip & Leasing & Maint. 8,239.15 6,250.00 1,989.15 131.8%
5060-02 - Talephone & Fax 2,304.55 1,666.69 637.88 138.3%
5060-03 - Internet 686.76 833.35 -246.60 70.4%
5080-04 - Office Supplies & Printing 2,323.57 2,083.31 240,28 111.5%
5060-06 « Dues & Subscriptions 6,335.50 4,905.00 430.50 108.8%
5080-06 + Postage 306.84 208.31 98.53 147.3%
5060-07 - Misc. Office Expenses 2,184.62 2,291.69 -107.47 95.3%
§060-08 - Web Site 1,176.89 2,083.31 -908.42 56.5%
Total Offlce Expense 22,457.77 20,321.66 2,136.11 110.6%
Other expense and activities 23.00
Other Expenses 2,173.89 2,083.31 90.58 104.3%
Employer Expsnses 146,766.94 167,341.80 -20,574.86 87.7%
Professional Fees 19,843.40 25,987.16 -6,143.756 76.4%
Public Relations/Merketing 10,327.60 10,314.43 13.07 100.1%
Total Expense 328,059.35 368,668.26 -42,608.91 88.4%
Net Ordinary Income 2,2688.24 -28,609.74 30,967.98 -7.9%
Other Income/Expense
Other Income
Interest iIncome 20,252.65 16,251.00 4,001.55 124.6%
Total Other Income 20,252.55 16,251.00 4,001.55 124.6%
Net Other Income 20,252.55 16,251.00 4,001.55 124.6%
Net Income 22,520.79 -12,448.74 34,969.53 -180.9%

Page 1




Lo} eled

srowsTe__  §suz Jrieezy avverit 0T 16261 Sz sy Twessy  Sgywvy uwo2U) 1N
SS'TET0T 00'0 000 6L'SES'IL 000 64088 £Ye6L'L STUL'S ErNE'S WO YO N
$5T5202 000 000 61'9€5'L} 00'0 61088 £¥E6LL sTTLe sYYLE'S 0o} RO RIOL
$525702 00'0 00°0 s1'985'1 00'0 st'oes V6Lt STULE sYrCE aweou) ysasem)
w0 PO
. IsusdxgzPWoIY IR0
$Z897T eSUT WIErTL 161529 oz1L6L61- or' 198 iy 5551t S0°CEL'L Jwoau) Kisuipio N
SEES0'9ZE 000 000 000 SE'668'SZE 00'0 16981 00'0 00tz wsuadig eioL
0522800 00’0 00’0 000 05°22€'01 000 00'0 00'0 000 SupsITHSUORRY JHARd
ovEva'sL 000 00’0 000 oreva'ss 00’0 00'0 00’0 00°0 sae4 [ruorssejold
$6'99L971 00'0 000 00’0 ve'9oL'orl 000 00’0 00’0 00°0 sesusdig sakopdug
EB'ELL'T 00'0 000 00'0 eeeL'e 000 00'e 00'0 00'0 sosusdx3 J0R0
00tz 000 00°0 00'0 00’0 000 e 000 00'EZ SIHARDE pUE FsUdXS IO
LISy 00’0 000 - 00'0 LSy 00'0 00’0 000 000 ¥suadx3 80150
o'¥05'st 00’0 00°0 000 08'¥05'8L 00'e 000 000 00'0 SOARTRIL] MON
WELLLL 00'c 00'0 000 8LLLL 000 000 00'0 00’0 sesuadx3 zigaslw
LY. 53 000 000 000 00’0 %00 L6°9EL 000 00'0 sRdxg IR
$9268'T 000 00’0 00'0 $9280Z 00’0 0w0'0 000 000 souensy)
1¥r'680'rL 00’0 000 00'0 Lr690'Y) 00’0 000 00°0 000 Kupang
sEYLL'D 000 00’0 000 LS 00'0 00'0 00'0 00’0 sasundxg weibald g
£530ZYL 000 00'0 00'¢ £5°80T0L 000 00°0 00’0 00'0 saag Bupinsuon
00'see'es 000 000 [\ 00°SEL'ES oo'e 000 00'0 000 1S1- Bumnsuod
00'SEY'E 00’0 000 000 00'58Y'E 000 00’0 00'0 00’0 Bujureig, puv SoouRse0D
ssusdg
BELZERZC 8T ILerTL 16'252°9 21'501'00¢ oF'LaT Lryes 1578511 S0°€sL'L g s
E e T WLEr'ZL 162529 91°901'00¢ or'ies W'res ISESL'L S0'Est’) SuiooL] jeoL
oe0zL'or 000 000 00'c OE0ZL'0Y 000 00°0 o0'e 000 V1L uRoIGSIIN VES
BLEOL sz 58Ty 0052 65’y 68'L 41 414 21608 WG| IHRO
95°80L'YS 000 oo - 00'e 95°80L'YS 000 000 00°0 00'0 dpyssosuodgdiysiaquion
S6'502'9 00'0 00’0 17155 00°0 see £0'6ES 51'268 E8'EY8 Woou| uso
6 ¥Or'0L 000 S8'808'L 90007 000 00'0 000 000 00'c awooul Jri9
99'939'L81 00'0 000 000 99'999'151 00°0 00'0 000 000 Aunog elqunjod
Ly - TR 00’0 000 000 L9'984'yL 00'0 000 000 00°0 NUBAY SARRDSIRLPY
00'sL 000 000 0062 00'0 00'c 000 000 000 oY) 884
’ awoauy
esusdhzwoy| Leupio
TVI0L VESYI®0L  puniOYAD € iw0L pung seo1Z Bugesedo L S-4TIVES YdVES SOdRIVES  S0-SRIVES
6102 AeN y6nonp Asenvep
ssejo Aq sso B Jyoid sweg peruaoy
d102) JUSWIAO[OAS( JIWOUOIT BIGIN|OD Sh3om

WY £y:ol



00 Z6'ETE 00°£18'TL Joozrete | | | ansasay Jamo) el
00°S£9'THT 00°8LZ'611T 00'8/Z°6TT | 00'I8E'SYy 9 ¥T] Auno) suaalg jo yueg
00°S8L°6€ SYTI Auno? ausaug jo yueg
00°0¥0°ET YN Aueg Asy
00°2L0'TT €41 ueg A3y spun ueo vas
00°L6ETTT 00°£6€'2¢T | 00°£95°9E spung ueo] vgs,
00°0£8'S8 pung ueo1 a3d}
S3AIBS3Y [e10L a|qejieay IdAL diysuonejay yueg 5junolY Iasasay]
000v9'SETT 00°98%'2 007869'9€C'T | o0THYOLT - - spund a|qejieay - vg
00Trv'oLz | 00'690°SS 9414 Auno) ausaup Jo yueg
00°088°60T S 41y Auno) ausaup Jo yueg]
soueleg 00°0t5'19 [Z1T queg Aax]
oljojiiod ueo] 00'€S6'EY €Y sueg Aa)]
vds wa.un) , pung UeOT ODIN VaS
00vST'E6L 00952996 00'vS8'9v6 | 00°LT66v8 AS sueg yoousapuni]
- o) ueg yooympunil (s3] |[ewS) puny ues 33D
sasue(eg ueo? 00'Z0v'61 00°Z0¥ 6T ) Jueg yoouRpuni]
Supumising sasuejeg uec] - AS jueg yooysapunil
vas 3 25a31d Suppuersing - AS »ueg yoousspuni]
oL 203D weun) qejieny [el0) pua| 0} 3jqepieny | 3dAL diysuoneyyueg | punj ueoy>a3d

6102 ‘T€ Aey - S30UB[Rg JUNOIIY BAIISIY B 01{03I0d Ueo] mc_.ﬂcﬂoﬂ__-o waun) ‘ueo]



- 00°TZ8 00'99°T1S 00'vST'8LL 00'61€°698 00°8S6'65T°C syisodaq jej0L
00'T28 . 00728 jueg aif
weugold ueot 0401
00°0V0‘ET 00°0¥0‘ET i yueg Ad)
00°0¥5'T9 00'0¥S‘T9 AL yueg As)
00'2L012 007L0TT €471 jueg Aay
00'€S6'l 00'€S6'EV €4 yueg Aa)
00°58L°6€ 00°S8L°6€ SYTI| Awno) audaiy Jo jueg
00°088°60T 00°088‘60T S414[ Auno) suaauo jo yueg
00°'T8E‘SY 00'T8E'SY 9y} Auno) audaio jo yueg
00'690°SS 00'690°SS 9414| Awuno) auaaig jo jueg
. . vas
00°20¥'6T 00°Z0V'61 A jueg 3ooytapupy
00°LT6°6V8 00°LT6'6V8 AS jueg yoouuapury
pung ueo
- - AS ueg Asy *
00'€L1'V09 00°€LTV09 AS Queg Asy
00'9LEVE 00'9LEVE AD yueg Aoy *
00'6¥5°19C 00'6¥5°19¢ M| Awuno) auaal Jo yueg
suonesado]
aqysyseg jueg gl Ajuno) ausaip A3y Nooylapuny jelol P
6102 ‘T€ Aey- susodag
sdiysuonejoy upjueg JuaLndj
uoneiodio) Juawidojanag d1wouod] elquinjod)




6L02/S1/S0 SL'ESY L0'sLE 80°89¢ z6'19'62 00°000'0E 000'S owz. 6Loc/LHY0 ~eD Asaved SEIM 50%CL
6102/0L/50 2920V [0F: 44 0e'995’L 24 c N YA 00°000'52 000'S owgl 8L0Z/82/90 2T ‘oo Busspuem 9r-022i
6102/92/50 €2Z°/8€ 154 /43 £6721T L0182 00°005°2Z osTL owz.L 6i02/6L/¥0 " saudx3 awil ulell £5-0221
610T/1E/S0 00052 S9'896'L se'LaL'y [ 44 4> ] 00°000'001 000°S owpzi ZloZelol JueInElsay puod ayl fARe 24
610Z/ceY0 Z9T0V 29'60€ 98'00E'} €L'S0F'61 00°000'sT 000'S owzs LLoZiELol ~'sesidoia 9HNS £y-0cct
6LOZ/ETSO ES'SOV STOLY £6'910'T 'e51'9l 00°000'6Z 0se's owzL LL0veizo eISI L) 2Es Se-0zeL
6L02/£0/50 STLEY VOLLL ¥5'€86'L YLEBL'S 00°000's2 005°L owzZ.L ¥l0Z/90/Z0 '@ Wed Yoouqhuucy o0zl
6102/0E/S0 YL LL0'L 89'L6¥'C 9.°909's 68'L¥¥'v6 Z6'969'82) 000°S owosl SL02/10/S0 " SIS ueold 12-0224
20ze's zoeet 20°TeT'E 6102/0L/S0 Z0°ZST'L (43744 1659y Le'sev's 0000009 000’2 owzey PILOZ/SLIEL “up ‘oubesjed ned 81022t
Lo 6LOZISTVO LSS o8'Ee 90°20e'2 00°000°SE 000°L owzL ¢iowEZ/vo dioD Jeqeu| Led 64-02Z}
6L02/LL/S0 0T#Ze SIELY se20Z't 25°096'C1 yrzeL'st o0scL owQgs 8L0c/SLBD *2g rRAe PO 802zl
6102/51/50 91’969 18°0L9 £L°118'C [ 4] 00°000'0% 0SL'L owzl SL0T/ROZL OT 'vospiH 3pIO 9l-0zTt
610Z/ElS0 EEE6L £V'syl [-o4:12:] 88'094'9 00°000'04 0009 owgg LloZ/Elr0 T sbuguuar YOI se-geei
00°000'00L 00°000'00} 000’ owyg &LOT/IONSO 4 sbupds apean s-022l

BLOZIELSO ZLYTL YS'YeS 29'6€9°} gc0se'ey 00°000'SY 000°'S owgl 610Z/5L0 OT1 'SPooD BUUA 102t
SLOT/I0/Y0 LE'LES 6'9e LVeBLT 29'es's 00°000'001 0s2T ow gzl 600/10/01 JAUID AWoH s.0peN €l-0zet
6102/60/S0 96'PLT elole SLyie 1e'sel'Lt eeZeT YL 000’9 oulgg 8i0zZ/iz/eo seumoD S8 28022
6L0Z/L0/0 ¥O'BES [JA% 4 05°'€522 ee'sea'et 86'990°2¢ 0059 owzl 510%/L0/80 “UPHOMDPOO “WET 01-0z2t
6L02/90/50 S9°28E yseLet 1Lp99 65'c9zZ'ey 00°000°0S 000°L owore ¥102/51/90 "3U) "sISUD WospnH 60-0ZZL
6102/Z2/¥0 2920V ZP'L6T s0'sie’t 6150’61 00°000's2 000'S ousz/, Ll0Z/eL60 19y SUsYIY-UOSpnH 05-02¢1
6L0Z/EL/S0 LO'E8E 8r'veZ 8'0el’L LoL2y'el 00°000'st 000'S owQe 810201101 © JeMold "D $ 9D 67022t
61L02/08/S0 897T0F [S=)2" 4 6L'185'L £6'895'22 00°000'52 000'S owz. 8lozivieo IPUne UMONBULIBD  QLi-0ZCL
6102/80/20 19VLY'S 06°05 LIETY'R 00°000°S1 05Z°L ow o9 9L0Z/¥0/80 “pood weyeyd el £e-0zel
6102/0Z/50 88'98Y 2 4> L6°00¥'2 9g'osb'L Zl'syo'ze 000€ owz. €£102/en/e0 “au} ‘uosiAg 90022t
6LOT/EL/SO 99°LPT §.28¢ 12'291°'L ge'LyL'e 00005°2h 0009 ow o9 LIOZ/BU/GO SIeS Jed sumalg ob-02ZL
6102/02/50 12192 SS°06C 62910’y §5°286'0) 00'0SE'El 0059 ow o9 8LOTHSO SYJOMPOOM BINY iy-ocey
6102/L1/50 04'90L 9'5E6 ¥L'L65°C 29'08E' Yy 00°000°05 000'S ou g  8102/02/20 80 B HOMIIN MOV Sy-0z2i
00°005'Z} 0000521 0sz'L owog 6L0/60/50 QT soveLsexeiqy 09-022t

6102/62/70 0ST1IE 0005’4 00°000'SL 00°000'sL 000'S owyg LIOTELR) "H 18348 SSOID Ly Ww-ozzh
6102/82/50 T9TOV \8eey 62°065't 2y'al9'oe 00°000'5Z 000'S oz, 8loz/szreo ssRUIdegsanqz -o2eL

(suonoesuey |ly)
soinog Buipund Ag
6L02/1€/S0 - 6102Z/1L0/1.0 PoLSd au} Joj pung ueot| 9a3Q Lo} Hoday aoueleg feuL

Wv 43 L1 6102/50/90




00°000°LL 00'000°Z} 0sTL owo9 6102/€2/S0 "plIZMPS U  B9L-0SZL
00°005°2t 00°005'2t 0sTL g9 6102/60/50 OTisooeisexeiqy  BGE-0STI
6L02/82/50 £2°92Y 61985 96'¥bS'L 8L'1i8'02 00°000'62 000°L owzL 810LB8Z/ED ssoudegsange  eL1-062h

o

g'¢5€.08
8L02/L0/S0 PE'ZLS ro'asy 902512 ¥512e'ch 00°000'0€ 1,793 owzl 5102/60/60 OTi'saL suBipJaA  BZI-08ZL
5L022S0 v8'EZY 8E'05Y T8'E69'L S9'9LL'EL 00°000's2 osTL Wzl 9LOTOE/ED g Supny ‘goqrel.  e0L-0SZL
6L0%/51/S0 0P'609 19°985 6E°03¥'C Ireso’Ll 00°000'6€ osLL ouzL SL0ZZ0RL OT1'UosSpNH 2P0 BL0-052)
6102/91/50 96°L6F e9°0SE LY'6EL'Z 61'€59'01 00'000'52 0sT’L owQ9 8L0Z/LL/S0 ~odeN eyezzid X80  B¥Z-0SZL
6102/02/S0 §9°412 rorsl LUg98 pLIST'E 00700004 [11-794 owa9  §102/80/40 “ujbu3 gews swir  BS0-062L
6LOTEL/S0 ZO'L62 LL'S6E 6€'680'L seosv'el 00°000's} 000°L owgg 8l0Z/0LOL MO D RO BIZ0STL
S§LOZ/0L/ISO- LE'SZY bLL89 23> 4 33 ¥g'60L°2Z 00'000's2 000°L owz. 8loziviied “UpunE UMOIBULRD  BYZ-0STL
610%.2/50 80'lS¥ 092y 96'192'2 00°000'€2 005°L ouQ9 ¥l0WLIZ/S0 “CWeld 159104 OB BZO-0SCL
610Z/91/50 $0'E69 298y 96'826'C 05'9.8'r} 00'000'SE 000°L aues  9L0TELHO TaSnpu) BOYISEE BL0-052)

6%’

6LOZ/ED/SO STZEY 29'651 'S00" 'LLL 00°000°SZ ezL-syzl
6302/ET/¥0 0T9LE ol 29’696 00°000°G4 000°2 oz £iozee/ve dicp seqeuj Ued  BLL-SHZL
6LOTELSO 10'66 ¥i'86 16°96¢€ yo'9zih'e 00'000°G 000°L ow o9 L10Z/EMNO OTIsBUUGP PIN - B8L-GFL
6LOZ/ZYS0 STOZY , 01909 si'se¥'L 2571 g% 4 00'000'52 0059 owz. 8L0Z/LLSO JORROID UOSPNH  BHZ-S¥ZL
61027220 ZENLY §9'9SE €9'00€'L £E'Y02'64 00°000°52 0009 owzL LIOUEHED I SuIY-UOSPNY  BEZ-GHTZL
6102/02/50 ¥L'6EE 9¥'85 yTore'L 8g'LL0'L 00°005'0Z 0009 ow gzl €l0Z/0e/L0 ‘ou| 'uosKg  BSO-S#ZL
610Z/ELS0 210 €6'IEE [358>1 91 0s°208'8 00°005'Z} 000’ owQy LL0Z/BME0 USRS IR sumolg  eLZSYeL

xxxxx

610Z/EL/SC 96" g A% ee'zLe ¥L'505'C 00°000'S 0sTL owge .102Z/81/01 Rnesgusaioy  e2ZSYTH

610Z/10/50 STZEY £6°5¥e zesig'l LLSL6'6 "000" 005°L owzL S10UIMe0 "UPHOMPOOM "WIT  BBO-OVCL
610%/Z0/50 00°082 azell L /%344 £8'58¥'C 00°000'6 osTL owgt 9L0UWIEB0 TYJONJOSPOOS Z3  BQL-O¥FTL
6L0Z/LLR20 LE662'LL 99°L9 15°1E2'LE ~00°000'0Z 0sTL oW Q9  9102/v0/80 *"pood WeReydIses eel-ovzl

owge Ll0Z/BT/E0

(suopoesuen Iv)
a2.4nog Buipund Ag WV 8¢ LI 6102/50/90
6L02/LE/SO - 6102/10/10 POLdd 3U3 Joj pund UeoT yas 1o} Hoday aoueleg [elL



' 574
£9'6¥9'62

6LoUSLISO L¥'LLS

00°000°0€ 000°L oWzl 6l0LLLIFO e Aayeg SEMM  ELE-0SZL

6102/01/50 €T92Y 96559 Lsiv'y LLs'ie 00°000'sZ 000°L owzL 810482/90 077 '1004 Bugapuem,  B0Z-052ZL
6102/82/50 £T°.8E [ 733 £6°T12 120'182'T2 0000522 0sTL owzL 8L0Z/6LY0 saudxg e vy 2ZE-052)
6102/52/y0 €292V os'LLy ey 59'v69'6L 00°000'52 000°L owzL LLOZIEL/OL “UsesudeW3 gHNS egl-0s2)
g6°'8¢E1 6102/20/50 00051 LE0LL €5'LIE LrZst'y 00°005'% 000°L owge gLOzEIR) “ssaujjom Ajueses  esz-05Z)
6102/01/50 00°00€ 157281 er'iiE'L SE'9EP'S 19°LL2'6 00072 owge 8102/80/20 Buy sauud  BSL-0SZ1
BL0Z/EL/S0 £T62Y 86'8LY 12898 62°1EL'YZ 00'000'Ss2 osTL owzZL 6102SLZ0 977 'speeD suuIw oe-0szt
6LOWEL/SO SEL8T €8°02E 26°S0L'L €L°929°04 00°000'2} 000°L owsy g0zLZ/L sund uksey,  BeZ-052ZL
610%/20/50 00'022 e y1'¥60'L 22T N 00°000's} 000°L owsgy 9102/20/20 Jeszeg usyed  ©91-06Z)
610Z/0E/S0 6V'E6T PLUELY 1 £L'126'L) 00°000'51 i o 0g  L0ZIELND doqepiyeg  egl-0szi
6102/12/90 12182 01'e0e 00" 0L°000'1 1 ooose'el owos 8LOZYZ/SO SHMpoo\ BiY  B61-0521

(suonoesuen jiv)
sainog Buipund Ag WV 6€ L1 6102/50/90
6102/L€/S0 -~ 610Z/1L0/10 PO 3} 1o} pun U0 YgS 104 Hoday aouejeq [euL




REAL ESTATE LEASE

This Lease Agreement (this “Lease”) is made effective as of the 1st day of June 2019 by and
between Eight Iron Buildings Inc., One Hudson City Centre, Hudson, NY 12534 (“Landlord”), and
Columbia Economic Development Corp., One Hudson City Centre, Hudson, NY 12534 (“Tenant”).
The parties agree as follows:

1. Premises. Landlord, in consideration of the lease payments provided in this
Agreement, leases to Tenant approximately 2100 sq. feet of office space at the Eight
Iron Building (the “Premises™) located at 1 Hudson City Center, Hudson, NY 12534.

2. Term. The lease term shall commence on September 1, 2019 and shall terminate on
August 31, 2024.

3. Option to Renew: Tenant shall have the option to renew for and additional five (5) year
term. The rent to be paid in the option period will be increased at the beginning of the
option period by 2.5% per year. Tenant agrees to notify Landlord 6 months before the
expiration of this Lease Agreement with an intent to vacate or renew.

4. Lease Payments. Tenant shall pay to Landlord monthly lease payments according to
the schedule below, payable in advance, on the FIRST day of each month. Such
payments shall be made to the Landlord at One Hudson City Centre, Hudson, NY
12534.

Monthly Payment
September 1, 2019 to August 31,2020  $3.200.00
September 1, 2020 to August 31, 2021 $3,280.00
September 1, 2021 to August 31,2022 $3,362.00
September 1, 2022 to August 31,2023  $3,446.00
September 1, 2023 to August 31,2024  $3,532.00

5. Security Deposit. Tenant shall deposit with Landlord $3,200.00 as security for
Tenant’s performance of obligations under this lease and any renewals or extensions of
this lease. At the termination of the lease, if the Tenant has performed all obligations
with respect to this lease subject to inspection by the landlord, the security deposit,
subject to deductions, infra, will be returned within 30 days.

6. Late Payments. Tenant shall also pay a late charge equal to 4.00% of the required
monthly payment for every payment that is not paid within 10 days after the due date.
Landlord and Tenant duly agree to furnish receipts of any late or disputed payments at
the written request of the other party.

7. Possession. Tenant shall be entitled to possession on the first day of the term of this
Lease, and shall yield possession to the Landlord on the last day of the term of this
Lease, unless otherwise agreed by both parties in writing.

8. Use of Premises. Tenant may use the Premises for a general office. Tenant may use
such space as necessary for the operation of Tenant’s business. Commercial appliances




and/or kitchen appliances may not be used outside of the kitchen and common areas
provided by the Landlord.

9. Alterations. Tenant, upon the written consent of Landlord (which consent will not be
unreasonably withheld) may make alterations to the Premises, provided such alterations
do not interfere or jeopardize the structural integrity of the building or any of the
systems serving the building of which the leased premises form apart included but not
limited to the plumbing, electrical, sprinkler, HVAC systems or nullify or modify any
service contract for the aforementioned systems or increase any utility cost or insurance
premium for the property for which the Premises form a part. Any alterations once
approved, need to be made by a reputable contractor or a licensed provider if necessary.
Any alterations are to be approved by the appropriate municipal official. All
contractors utilized for the purpose of making alteration shall provide to Tenant and
Landlord appropriate proof of insurance for general liability, workers compensation and
disability and any other insurance that may be necessary. A certificate of insurance
naming Landlord as additional insured shall be provided. A waiver of mechanics lien
shall also be provided. Once made, all alterations will remain the property of the
Landlord.

10. Maintenance & Repair. Tenant shall be responsible to maintain the interior of said
premises at all times during the term of this lease, and any renewal term thereof.
Tenant shall keep the premises in good repair, clean, and in a safe and orderly
condition, free from debris, garbage, trash, and rubbish of all kinds, normal day-to-day
use accepted, and shall furnish and replace light bulbs and ballasts as needed. Failure
to keep the Premises in such condition is subject to deductions in the security deposit
at the inspection and assessment of Landlord.

a) Tenant shall also be responsible for the following:

i. Repair of damage caused by the act, negligent or not, or omission of
Tenant, his employees, agents, contractors, customers, invitees and
licensees;

il. Repair or replacement of broken plate or window and door glass broken
by any of the aforementioned.

b) Landlord agrees to repair and maintain in good order the outside walks,
structure, foundation and roof of the building containing the said leased
premises, and shall maintain the furnace and plumbing systems servicing the
same. The Landlord shall be responsible for the repairs, operation,
maintenance, and replacement obligations to the common areas, as defined
hereunder, mechanicals, electrical wiring, doors, windows, air conditioning,
heating, plumbing, sewage systems, fixtures, foundation, parking areas,
walkways, sidewalks, grounds and the building’s exterior not caused by any act
or negligence of Tenant or any of Tenant’s agents, employees or invitees.

¢) Landlord represents that at the time of the lease, and before the Tenant
occupies said premises, all fixtures, electrical, heat and plumbing systems are
in good working condition.




11. Common Area Maintenance. During the term of this Lease and any extension thereof,
Tenant and its authorized representatives and invitees shall have the nonexclusive right
to use the common area, with others who are entitled to use the common areas, subject
to Landlord’s rights as herein provided. The term “common areas” means all areas of
the building and land that the Premises is located on that are provided and designated
by Landlord from time to time for the general use and convenience of Tenant and
other tenants of the Premises and their authorized representatives and invitees.
Common areas (as initially constructed or as thereafter enlarged or reduced) include,
without limitation, pedestrian walkways and patios, landscaped areas, sidewalks,
service corridors, restrooms, stairways, decorative walls, plazas, throughways, loading
areas, parking areas and roads. Landlord shall maintain the common areas in good
condition.

12. Access by Landlord to the Premises. Subject to Tenant’s consent (which shall not be
unreasonably withheld), Landlord shall have the right to enter the Premises to make
inspections, provide necessary services, or show the unit to prospective buyers,
mortgagees, tenants or workmen. As provided by law, in the case of an emergency,
Landlord may enter the Premises without Tenant’s consent.

13. Utilities. Landlord shall be responsible, at their sole cost and expense, for all heat,
gas, water, sewer and electric utilities in connection with Tenant’s use of the Premises,
from the date of Possession of said Premises as stated in this Lease, until the last day
of occupancy according to the termination of this Lease, as agreed upon by both
parties. Landlord represents and warrants to Tenant that the Premises is serviced by
water, sewer, gas, and electricity and that no additional utilities are required to be
brought to the Premises in order for Tenant to conduct its business in the Premises.
Landlord shall not be liable for failure to furnish utilities or services to the Premises
when such failure is not caused by or resulting from Landlord, its agents,
representatives, employees, and/or contractors, but in case of such failure Landlord
will take reasonable steps necessary to restore the interrupted utilities and services.
Tenant shall also have the right, but not the obligation, to take said steps to restore the
interrupted utilities at their own expense.

14, Property Insurance.
a. The Tenant is hereby advised and understands that the personal property of the
Tenant is not insured by the Landlord for either damage or loss, and that the
Landlord assumes no liability for such loss.

b. If Tenant shall fail at any time to maintain the insurance coverage required under
this section, the Landlord may at its option pay for the same on the Tenant’s
behalf, and the Tenant shall reimburse the Landlord for the same.

c. Tenant and Landlord shall, each at its own expense, maintain a policy or policies
of comprehensive general liability insurance with respect to the respective
activities of each in the Building with the premiums thereon fully paid on or
before due date, issued by and binding upon some insurance company approved
by Landlord, such insurance to afford minimum protection of not less than
$1,000,000 combined single limit coverage of bodily injury, property damage or
combination thereof. Landlord shall be listed as an additional insured on Tenant's




policy or policies of comprehensive general liability insurance, and Tenant shall
provide Landlord with current Certificates of Insurance evidencing Tenant's
compliance with this Paragraph. Tenant shall obtain the agreement of Tenant's
insurers to notify Landlord that a policy is due to expire at least (10) days prior to
such expiration. Landlord shall not be required to maintain insurance against
thefts within the Leased Premises or the Building.

d. Landlord shall maintain fire and extended coverage insurance on the Building and
the Leased Premises in such amounts as Landlord shall deem appropriate. Tenant
shall be responsible, at its expense, for fire and extended coverage insurance on
all of its personal property, including removable trade fixtures, located in the
Leased Premises.

15. Taxes. Landlord shall pay all real estate taxes and assessments for the Premises.

16. Inclement Weather. Landlord shall be responsible for having sidewalks and entrance to
said leased space clear, and free from debris, snow, ice, or similar obstructions that may
cause harm to Tenant or their employees. Landlord shall provide labor and materials
(ice melt) as necessary, at Landlord’s sole expense.

17. The Tenant is fully familiar with the physical condition of the leased premises, the
building, improvements, fixtures and equipment thereof, and Tenant takes the demised
premises in their “as is” condition.

18. Landlord assumes no liability for:

a. Loss of sales or work time due to power failures, or failure of heating system, fire
or any causes beyond their control, but Landlord does agree to restore said
services as quickly as economically possible.

b. Damage to Tenant’s equipment, merchandise, supplies, or displays due to fire,
theft, water damage, or any other cause, unless damaged caused by Landlord or
Landlord’s representative(s) affirmative actions.

18. Agreement/Abatement. This Lease Agreement contains the entire agreement of the
parties and there are no other promises or conditions in any other agreement whether
oral-or written. This Lease may be modified or amended in writing, if the writing is
signed by both parties obligated under the amendment.

19. Severability. If any provision hereof should be held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in
any respect in any jurisdiction, then, to the fullest extent permitted by law, (a) all other
provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect in such jurisdiction and shall be
liberally construed in order to carry out the intentions of the Parties as nearly as may be
possible and (b) such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect the
validity, legality, or enforceability of such provision in any other jurisdiction. To the
extent permitted by applicable law, the Parties hereby waive any provision of law that
would render any provision hereof prohibited or unenforceable in any respect.




20. Tenant agrees to return all keys to Landlord upon termination of Lease. Failure to
comply will result in a deduction of the security deposit at the cost of $150.00 per
manual key and $50.00 for electronic key cards or fobs.

21. Landlord will grant parking privileges to Tenant, Tenant’s employees or agents during
the term of this Lease for the parking area at said Premises.

22. Signage. Following Landlord's consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld,
delayed or conditioned, Tenant shall have the right to place on the frontage of the
Premise, at locations selected by Landlord, any signs which are permitted by applicable
zoning ordinances and private restrictions. Landlord shall not assist, but cooperate with
Tenant in obtaining any necessary permission from governmental authorities or
adjoining owners and occupants for Tenant to place or construct the foregoing signs.
Tenant shall repair all damage to the Premises resulting from the removal of signs
installed by Tenant.

23. Landlord shall not unreasonably withhold or delay its consent with respect to any
matter for which Landlord's consent is required or desirable under this Lease.

24. Landlord shall comply with all laws, orders, ordinances and other public requirements
now or hereafter affecting the Premises.

25. This Agreement shall be governed, construed and interpreted by, through and under the
Laws of the State of New York.

26. Assignment. No Party shall assign any or all of its rights or obligations hereunder to
any third party without first obtaining the written consent thereto of the other Party,
which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed, except that in the event of
an assignment to an Affiliate of the assigning Party or to the acquirer of all or
substantially all of the capital stock or assets of the assigning Party related to this
Agreement, through purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise, no such consent
shall be required, if the assignee agrees to be bound by the terms hereof within five (5)
days after such assignment. The terms and provisions of this Agreement shall inure to
the benefit of, and be binding upon, the Parties and their respective successors and
permitted assigns. Any reference to the Parties hereunder shall be deemed to include
the successors thereto and permitted assigns thereof.

27. Destruction. If the Premises, common areas, or any part thereof or any appurtenance
thereto is so damaged by fire, casualty or structural defects that the same cannot be
used for Tenant's purposes, then Tenant shall have the right within ninety (90) days
following damage to elect by notice to Landlord to terminate this Lease as of the date
of such damage. In the event of minor damage to any part of the Premises or common
areas, and if such damage does not render the Premises or common areas unusable for
Tenant's purposes, Landlord shall promptly repair such damage at the cost of the
Landlord. In making the repairs called for in this paragraph, Landlord shall not be liable
for any delays resulting from strikes, governmental restrictions, inability to obtain
necessary materials or labor or other matters which are beyond the reasonable control
of Landlord. Tenant shall be relieved from paying rent and other charges during any
portion of the term that the Premises or common areas are inoperable or unfit for




28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

occupancy, or use, in whole or in part, for Tenant’s purposes. This section does not !
apply if the damage was a result of the act, negligent or not, or omission of Tenant, his |
employees, agents, contractors, customers, invitees and licensees. Tenant’s act or
omission by any of the above actors does not provide for the release option.

Condemnation. If any legally, constituted authority condemns the building or such part
thereof or common areas which shall make the Premises unsuitable for leasing, this
Lease shall cease when the public authority takes possession, and Landlord and Tenant
shall account for rental as of that date. Such termination shall be without prejudice to
the rights of either party to recover compensation from the condemning authority for
any loss or damage caused by the condemnation. Neither party shall have any rights in
or to any award made to the other by the condemning authority.

Attorneys’ Fees. If Landlord becomes a party to any litigation or commences an action
concerning this Lease, the Premises, or the building or other improvements in which the
Premises are located, by reason of any act or omission of Tenant or its authorized
representatives, Tenant shall be liable to that Landlord for reasonable attorneys' fees
and court costs incurred by it in the litigation if Landlord prevails.

Waiver. Any waiver, express or implied, by either Party of any breach of this
Agreement shall be in writing and shall not constitute a waiver of any other or
subsequent breach.

Notice. Any notice required or permitted under this Lease shall be deemed sufficiently
given or served if sent by United States certified mail, return receipt requested,
addressed as follows:

Eight Iron Buildings Inc.,
1 Hudson City Centre, Hudson, NY 12534

Columbia Economic Development Corp.
1 Hudson City Centre, Hudson, NY 12534

Landlord and Tenant shall each have the right from time to time to change the place
notice is to be given under this paragraph by written notice thereof to the other party.

Authority of Parties. If Tenant or Landlord is a corporation or other entity, each
individual executing this Lease on behalf of said corporation or entity represents and
warrants that he is duly authorized to execute and deliver this Lease on behalf of said
corporation or entity, in accordance with the organizational documents of said entity
and that this Lease is binding thereon.




The parties hereby make this Lease Agreement effective by signing as shown below:

LANDLORD:
Eight Iron Buildings Inc.

By: Date:

TENANT:
Columbia Economic Development Corp.

By: Date:




